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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the Members of JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited
(formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited
(formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the
Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its profit (financial
performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

8. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

10. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act.

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

12. Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

b)

c)

d)

e)

~

g

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 30 April 2019 as per Annexure ||
expressed unmodified opinion;

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company, as detailed in note 2.27 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2019.

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2019;

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not
relevant to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registyation No.: 001076N/N500013

[y

Manish’Guijral
Partner
Membership No.: 105117

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30 April 2019

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the members of JSW Industrial Gases
Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(if)

(iii)

(vi)

Chartered Accountants

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets under

which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were verified during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

In our opinion, the management has conducted a physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals, except for except for goods in transit and liquid products stored in
tanks, which have not been verified during the year. No material discrepancies between
physical inventory and book records were noticed on physical verification of inventory so
physically verified However, in respect of inventories which were not physically verified
we are unable to comment on the discrepancies which could have arisen between
physical inventory and book records.

The Company has granted unsecured loan to company covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Act; and with respect to the same:

in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are not, prima facie, prejudicial to
the company's interest.

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
receipts of the principal amount and the interest are regular;

there is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such company.

In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
(as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of Company’s products/services and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

(vii)(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, to the
appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they
become payable.

S

Chartered Accountants

The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Amount amount Repiogita Forum where
Name of Nature of . paid under | which the . .
(Zin dispute is
the statute | dues lakhs) protest (2 | amount endin
in lakhs) relates P 9
Income - tax | Income tax Income tax
Act, 1961 and interest | 1371 ) 20il0= 2012 appellate tribunal
Income - tax | Income tax 110 ) SHPLSTTE Icr:wcc):rc?r;neis??;er of
Act, 1961 and interest (Appeals)
Duty and High court of
penalty 262 e 1996- 2006 Karnataka
The Central | Duty, interest ) Supreme court of
Excise Act, and penalty B2s 623 200052002 India
1944
Custom excise and
D:r:);'?nd 64 2 2004- 2015 | service tax
P y appellate tribunal
The Duty and i Sales tax tribunal of
Karnataka penalty 2 4 200il-2008 Karnataka
tax of entry —
of goods ssistant
act 1979 | Duty and 9 ; 2008- 2009 | commissioner of
’ penalty h
commercial taxes
Karnataka
salestax | DU and | 45 127 1999- 2001 | SUpreme court of
act, 1957 penatly i
Karnataka :
——— D:rté\l?nd 2 i 2001- 2003 E:Iris tta‘)(( tribunal of
act, 1957 | Penay ataka
The
Karnataka . .
taxvalue | DU interest | g5 165 2005- 2006 | p21es fax Irbunal of
added tax P y e
act, 2013
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure | (Contd)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or a bank or
government and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable.

No fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

Managerial remuneration has been paid by the company in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors
or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regisfration No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.;: 105117

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30 April 2019

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of JSW Industrial Gases
Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited) on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited
(formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited) (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March
2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ('IFCoFR’) of the Company
as at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on mention control criteria in accordance with Internal control framework defined in
Appendix 1 to SA 315, “Identifying and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement Through
Understanding the Entity and its Environment” (‘the framework’). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the Guidance Note’) issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’'s IFCoFR.Meaning of Internal Financial

6. Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure Il (Contd)

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the
framework.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's.Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
.

\

Manish Gujral
Partner
Membership No.: 105117

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30 April 2019

N
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JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited

(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(Al amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2.01 (A) 12,025 13,178
(b) Capital Work in Progress 267 -
(c) Investment property 2.02 4 4
(d) Other intangible assets 2.01 (B) 4 9
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments 2.03 3 3
(ii) Loans 2.04 173 153
(f) Non-current tax assets 2.24 (e) 431 431
(g) Other non-current assets 2.05 1,141 1,166
14,048 14,944
Current assets
(2) Inventories 2.06 396 293
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 2.03 7,228 20,887
(ii) Trade receivables 2.07 2,546 2,203
(iiiy Cash and cash equivalents 2.08 124 1,060
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 2.09 980 2,362
(v) Loans 2.04 4,000 -
(vi) Others financial assets 2.10 16 72
(c) Other assets 2.05 126 90
15,416 26,967
TOTAL ASSETS 29,464 41,911
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 2.11 9,208 9,208
(b) Other equity 2.12 15,598 27,819
24,806 37,027
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 2.13 29 22
(b) Deferred tax liabilities, net 2.24 2,736 3,159
2,765 3,181
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 2.14 184 178
(i) Other financial liabilities 215 551 378
(b) Provisions 2.13 14 i
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 2.24 (f) 154 251
(d) Other current liabilities 2.16 990 889
1,893 1,703
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 29,464 41,911
Summary of significant accounting policies. 1.04

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of JSW

Industrial Gases Private Limited
Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No: 00107N/N500013

Pawa}gl:ar Kedia

Partner Director
Membership No: 105117 DIN : 0792523 DIN: 00020570

Mumbai Mumbai
Kolkata 30 April 2019 30 April 2019
30 April 2019

[ a‘d‘
atya Srinivas

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
M. No. A-15423

Mumbai

30 April 2019
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JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 2
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)
Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
INCOME
(a) Revenue from operations 217 55,295 55,185
(b) Other income 2.18 1,200 1,254
TOTAL 56,495 56,439
EXPENSES
(a) Power and fuel 2.19 48,154 46,488
(b) Excise duty on sales - 1,795
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 220 (43) 38
(d) Employee benefits expense 2.21 547 498
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,22 1,950 1,835
(f) Other expenses 2.23 1,401 861
TOTAL 52,009 51,515
Profit before tax 4,486 4,924
Tax expense: 2.24
(a) Current tax 2,147 2,071
(b) Deferred tax credit (424) (415)
Profit after tax 2,763 3,268
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(a) Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans (31 March 2018 : ¥ 25,555) 2.21 4 0
(b) Income tax effect (1) -
Items to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(a) Remeasurement of investments in equity instruments 2,03 - 1
(b) Income tax effect (31 March 2018 : ¥ 34,610) < 0
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 3 1
periods '
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,766 3,269
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 2,763 3,268
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to the parent 2,766 3,269
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (%) 2.28 3.00 3.55
Summary of significant accounting policies. 1.04

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's regiatra/lion No: 00107N/N500013

~
d

ManistpGujral
Partner
Membership No: 105117

Kolkata
30 April 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of JSW
Industrial Gases Private Limited
(formerly JSV¥ Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Har ottarath Nair

Director

DIN : 0792523
Mumbai

30 April 2019

=

atya Srinivas

D\

Pawan Kumar Kedia
Director

DIN; 00020570
Mumbai

30 April 2019

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

M. No. A-15423
Mumbeai
30 April 2019
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JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 4
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in Z lakhs, unless other wise stated)
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 4,486 4,924
Adjustmens for.
Depreciation and amortisation 1,950 1,835
Interest income (335) (857)
Consumption of insurance spares 8 12
Provision for slow and non-moving stock (58) 78
Write off obsolete inventory 5 -
Unwinding of discount on security deposits (20) (15)
Net gain on sale of current investments (669) (225)
Investments measured at fair value through profit and loss 71) (106)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - -
Extinguishment of liabilities - (44)
Amortization of prepaid expenses 25 24
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,321 5,626
Adjustments for working capital changes:
(Increase) in inventories (45) (115)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (445) 5,645
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 2 136
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 120 (70)
Increase in other liabilities 117 537
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 14 (27)
5,084 11,732
Net income tax paid (net) (2,244) (2,112)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 2,840 9,620
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment ( inclluding capital work-in -progress) (958) 17)
Interest received 388 1,018
Investments in mutual funds (49,062) (44,154)
Sale of mutual funds 63,461 23,598
Unsecured loans given (4,000) (200)
Proceeds from repayment of unsecured loan - 200
Investments in fixed deposits - -
Proceeds from maturity of fixed deposits 1,382 5,090
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) 11,211 (14,465)
C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Dividend paid during the year (12,432) -
Dividend Distribution Tax paid during the year (2,555) -
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (14,987) -
Net increase (decrease) / in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (936) (4,845)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,060 5,905
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 124 1,060

2




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 5
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Cont'd)

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances 124 1,060
124 1,060

Note:

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity, at the date of purchase / investment, of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Summary of significant accounting policies.
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited
Firm's registra No: 00107N/N500013 (formerly JSWePrgxair Oxygen Private Limited)
— e
-
Manish Gujral Harish Kottarath Nair Pawan Mumar Kedia
Partner Director Director
Membership No; 105117 DIN : 0792523 DIN: 00020570
Mumbai Mumbai
Kolkata 30 April 2019 30 April 2019

30 April 2019

w
a Srifiivas

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
M. No. A-15423
Mumbai

30 April 2019




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 6
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2019

(All a

1

1.02

1.03

mounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)

General Information

JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited (formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited) ('the Company”) was incorporated on 27
September 1995 under the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office at JSW Centre Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) Mumbai,
400051 India. The Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of JSW Steel Limited ("the Holding Company") with effect from 16 August
2016. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of Industrial gases. It produces gaseous oxygen, gaseous
nitrogen, liquid oxygen, liquid nitrogen and liquid argon

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April
2019.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ('MCA’). The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities which are measured at fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in to account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified in March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value' assets (e.g., personal
computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset

representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company will adopt the aforesaid standrad effective from April 1, 2019. As at the date of issuance of the Company's financial
statements, the Company is in the process of evaluating the requirements of the aforesaid standard and the impact on its financial
statameants in the nerind f initial annlicatinn

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to
be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates,
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the
probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to
use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when
determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt the
standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without
adjusting comparatives. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind
AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1,
2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements

S




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 7
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)

1.03

1.04

N

Recent accounting pronouncements (Cont'd)

Amendment to ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement-

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for
plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity:

* to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus
was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The Company is currently evaluating
the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements

Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis summarized below.

i. Overall considerations
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases that are in effect at 31
March 2019, as summarised below.

il. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is classified as current when:

« it is expected to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;

« it is held the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;

* it is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

« the asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in Ind AS 7) unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as current when:

* it expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

+ it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

« the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

« it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a
liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification

All other liabilities are classified as non-current,
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non current classification of
assets and liabilities.

iii. Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the functional currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional currency at exchange rates in effect
at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or any other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the fair values were determined,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which
they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

iv. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net of rebate and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition
criteria to each separately identifiable component of the sales transaction as set out below.

Sale of product

Income from sale of industrial gases is recognized when control of goods and services are transferred to the customer. Revenue excludes
taxes collected on behalf of government authorities and therefore has been presented net of indirect taxes such as sales tax, goods and
service tax (GST), service tax etc. However, the revenue includes excise duty (until 1 June 2017).




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 8

(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year

ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in T lakhs, unless other wise stated)
1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

iv. Revenue recognition (cont'd)

Income from lease arrangement

The Company has entered into a Pipeline Supply Agreement (PSA) with JSW Steel Limited (‘holding Company') for supply of industrial
gases at predetermined rates plus variable payment in respect of power and fuel expenses. In addition, Minimum-take-or-pay (‘MTOP")
charges are billed in accordance with the PSA when consumption is lower than the minimum committed quantities are by the holding
Company

PSA has been assessed as to whether it contains an embedded lease which convey to the counterparty (JSW Steel Limited) a right to use
of the Company's property, plant and equipment in return for future payments. The arrangement is classified as operating leases
Accordingly, the Company has recognised the lease income consistent with the recognition of sale of industrial gases, i.e. when control of
goods and services are transferred to the customer, usually on delivery and bifurcates the revenues from lease arrangement between
‘Income from lease rentals’ and ‘Income from operation and management services'.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

v. Property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset, Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land held for use in the production, supply or administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

vi. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is
recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line
method as per the usefu! life prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. As per the Company's evaluation of the accounting prescribed under Ind AS 16 and Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013, the management has not identified any significant component having different useful lives.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is amortized over the period of the lease, except where the lease is convertible to freehold
land under lease agreements at future dates at no additional cost.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the reporting date.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives of assets are as follows:

Asset category Useful life (years)
Buildings 30 years
Office equipments 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Plant and equipments 25 years
Computer equipments 3 years
Vehicles 8 years




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 9
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)
1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

vii. Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses
Asset category Useful life (years)
Softwares 3 years

viii. Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured initially at
their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in
Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in
the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external Independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being
valued

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

viii. Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such Indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an Individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to Individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identifiad
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows

are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

ix. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivable which are initially measured at
transaction price.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited 10
(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in Z lakhs, unless other wise stated)
1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
ix. Financial instruments (cont'd)

a. Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset is also
adjusted

Investment non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets carried at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further in
cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair values through profit and loss.

(i) Subsequent measurement

Investment in equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments which are held for trading are generally
classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either
as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such
election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Investment in mutual funds
Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset

b. Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and transaction cost that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities is
also adjusted. These liabilities are classified as amortised cost

Subsequent measurement
These liabilities include are borrowings and deposits. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

c. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

d. Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
for financial assets.

ECL is the weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider:

- All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.

- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables
The Company applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of receivables.

Other financial assets
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition and if credit risk has increased significantly, impairment loss is provided.
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1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

xii. Inventories
Inventories are valued lower of costs determined as mentioned below or net realisable value,

Raw materials, processing materials, and stores are valued at cost. (for stores in the nature of property, plant and equipment on the basis of
weighted average cost per unit of measurement after taking into account the receipts at actual cost). Stores and spares older than 10 years
are provided for in the financial statements.

Work-in-process and finished goods are stated at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost comprises of material, direct labour,
related production expenses and excise duty wherever applicable.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

xiii. Taxation

Tax expense recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted for the reporting period. Current income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly,
MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company having reasonable certainty that it can be utilized against the normal taxes payable under the Income Tax Act 1961.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilized against future taxable income. This is assessed based on the
Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of
any unused tax loss or credit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

xiv. Employee benefits
Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits.

Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure,
when an employee renders the related service. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Defined benefit plan

Gratuity

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets (if any). The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial -assumptions are recognised in the period
in which they occur, directly in other compréhensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity
and in the Balance Sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately
in profit or loss as past service cost

Compensated absences
The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined on the full cost basis for eligible employees

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on the basis of the amount paid or
payable for the period during which services are rendered by the employee,
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1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

xv. Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet

xvi Provisions and contingencies

Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably
estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or it cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is
recognised

xvii. Earnings/ (Loss) per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible
instrument are included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible preference shares, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined Independently for each period presented.

xviii. Lease

As a lessee

Finance Lease - A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

A leased asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the asset or the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, whichever is lower. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the
end of the lease term, the capitalised asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset,
the lease term or the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

Operating Lease - Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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1.04 Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)

xix. Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
Company is engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of Industrial gases in India which is the only reportable segment.

xx. Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and

assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates
- Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Significant management judgements

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant

effect on the financial statements

Evaluation of Indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of applicability of Indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could
result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets

Classification of leases
The Company has entered into a Pipeline Supply Agreement ('PSA') to provide more than an insignificant amount of the plant output to its
Holding Company in return for operating payments. The management believes that such arrangements are in the nature of operating lease.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility
of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain items of
property, plant and equipment.

Defined benefit obligation(DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, medical
cost trends, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the
DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurements

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available)
and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the
instrument. Management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved
in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from
past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and
circumstances which may be subject to change. The amounts are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities
that are possible but not probable of crystalising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities
are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.02 Investment property

Land Total
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2017 4 4
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4 4
Additions - -
Disposals ] -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 4 4
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2017 - -
Depreciation charge for the year - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2018 - -
Additions : =
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 - -
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2018 4 4
Balance as at 31 March 2019 4 4
I. Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Rental income derived from investment properties 3 3
Direct operating expenses and taxes arising from investment properties 1 1
Profit arising from investment property before indirect expenses 2 2

1. Obligations and restrictions
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop
investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

Ill. Fair value measurement

The fair value of the property as on 16 August 2016 is ¥ 153 lakhs. It is based on valuations performed by external accredited independent valuer,
who is a specialist in valuing these types of investment properties. A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the International
Valuation Standards Committee has been applied. Fair value hierarchy disclosures for investiment properties have been provided in Note 2.31.

IV. Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on investment properties:

The estimation of market value of land of the subject property is carried out by adopting 'sales comparison method' by conducting local enquiry
and market survey with property dealers, brokers, owners of the property in the surrounding area. The prevalent market rate of comparable
property in the vicinity of the property under valuation is considered to be the estimated market value of the subject property. The factors which
have been considered are shape, size, location, frontage, access to main road, demand and supply of similar properties etc. The Company
carried out the valuation of the investment property on 16 August 2016 and believes that the fair valuation of the land as at 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2018 are similar to the valuation carried on 16 August 2016,

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.03 Investments
Non-current

Investments in equity instruments (refer note 2.30)

Quoted, carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
(i) JSW Steel Limited
(1,000 (31 March 2018: 1000) shares at par value of 1 each
(31 March 2018: 1 each) fully paid-up)

Other disclosures:

(a) Aggregate cost of quoted investments

(b} Aggregate cost of unquoted investments

(c) Aggregate market value of quoted investments

(d) Aggregate market value of unquoted investments

(e) Investments carried at amortized cost

(f) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (refer note 2.310)
(9) Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive

income (refer note 2,310)

Current

Investments in mutual funds {refer note 2.30)
Unquoted, carried at fair value through profit and loss
(i) Mutual funds

Other disclosures:
(a) Aggregate cost of quoted investments
(b) Aggregate cost of unquoted investments
(c) Aggregate market value of quoted investments
(d) Aggregate market value of unquoted investments
(e) Investments carried at amortized cost
(f) Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (refer note 2.31)
(g) Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive
income (refer note 2.31)

2.03 (a} Investments in liquid mutual funds
Balance as on 31 March 2019:

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

3 3
3 3
1 1
3 3
3 3
7,228 20,887
7,228 20,887
7,051 20,781
7,228 20,887

Particulars Units Cost (INR lakhs)  Value (INR lakhs)
Axis Liguid Fund - Growth( CF-GP) 49,318 1,000 1,018
Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund- Regular (Growth) 1,395,799 4,051 4,173
Mirae Asset Cash Management Fund - Regular (Growth) 104,434 2,000 2,037
1,549,551 7,051 7,228

2.04 Loans

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits (refer note 2.30)

Current
Unsecured, considered good

Loan given to ECAP equities limited

Other disclosures:
(a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
(b) Financial assets carried at fair value through Profit or loss (refer note 2.31)

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

173 153
173 153
4,000 -
4,000 i
4,173 153




JSW Industrial Gases Private Limited

(Formerly known as JSW Praxair Oxygen Private Limiled)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2019

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, unless other wise stated)

2.05

2.07

2.08

Other assets

Non-current
Unsecured, considered good

Advances other than capital advances:
Indirect taxes paid under protest (refer note 2.27)
Balances with government authorities and others
Prepaid expenses(™)

Current
Unsecured, considered good
Advance to suppliers
a) Capital Goods
b) Others
Advance to employees (% 28,000; 31 March 2018: ¥ 28,000)
Balances with government authorities and others
Prepaid expenses(*)

As at
31 March 2019

18

As at
31 March 2018

975 975

17 17

149 174

114 1,166
35 .

20 19

0 0

2 2

69 69

126 90

1,267 1,256

(*) Includes amounts paid to the Holding Company towards security deposit to the tune of ¥ 174 lakhs for 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018: ¥
189 lakhs) on account of housing facilities taken for the employees of the Company for a period of 11 years. The reduction in the prepaid
expense balances are on account of unwinding of the discount which is recognised as expense amounting to ¥ 25 lakhs for 31 March 2019
(31 March 2018: T 24 lakhs) in the Statement of Profit and Loss (refer note 2.21 and 2.29).

Inventories

Work-in-progress (at lower of cost or net realisable value})
Finished goods (at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stores and spares (at cost)

Less: Provision for slow and non-moving stock

Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered good - Secured

Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Other disclosures:
Includes dues from related parties (refer note 2.29)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
In current accounts
In deposits with maturity less than three months

Cash on hand (% 3,899; 31 March 2018: ¥ 37,884)

Other bank balances

Balances with banks:
Fixed deposits maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Other financial assets

Current

Unsecured, considered good

Plan assets (refer note 2.21(b))

Interest accrued on fixed deposits/ loans*

3 2
111 69
542 540
(260) (318)
396 293
2,546 2,203
2,548 2,203
2,473 2,134
24 60
100 1,000
0 0
124 1,060
980 2,362
980 2,362
= 3
16 69
16 72

("} Includes interest receivable from inter-corporate deposit ¥ 2 lakhs (31 March 2018: Nil)
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211 Equity share capital
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 152,000,000 15,200 152,000,000 15,200
Redeemable preference share of ¥ 10 each 16,000,000 1,600 16,000,000 1,600
0.1% non-cumulative, non-convertible preference share of 34,700,000 3,470 34,700,000 3,470
% 10 each
10% non-cumulative, non-convertible preference share of 16,300,000 1,630 16,300,000 1,630
Z 10 each
219,000,000 21,900 219,000,000 21,900
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each, fully paid-up 92,083,826 9,208 92,083,826 9,208
92,083,826 9,208 92,083,826 9,208
2.11 (a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each, par value
Balances as at the beginning of the year 92,083,826 9,208 92,083,826 9,208
Add: Issued and subscribed during the - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 92,083,826 9,208 92,083,826 9,208
2.11 (b) Details of shares held by the holding company
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each, par value
JSW Steel Limited 92,083,826 9,208 92,083,826 9,208
2.11 (c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number Percentage Number Percentage
Equity shares of & 10 each, par value
JSW Steel Limited 92,083,826 100 percent 92,083,826 100 percent
92,083,826 100 percent 92,083,826 100 percent

2.11 (d) There has been no issuance of bonus shares during five years immediately preceding 31 March 2019. Aggregate number of equity
shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date are as follows:

Financial year ended:
31 March 2019
31 March 2018
31 March 2017
31 March 2016
31 March 2015
31 March 2014

211 (e) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each

Number Amount

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 per share. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with
regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of
hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights cannot be exercised in respect of
shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

S
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As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
212 Other equity
Capital redemption reserve 11,377 11,377
Securities premium account 1,281 1,281
Retained earnings:
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,173 11,905
Add: Profit for the year 2,763 3,268
Less: Dividend including dividend distribution tax (14,987) -
Balance at the end of the year 2,949 15,173
Other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year (12) (13)
Add: Profit for the year 3 1
Balance at the end of the year (9) (12)
15,598 27,819

Nature and purpose of reserves

Capital redemption reserve
Amounts transferred to Capital reserve represents face value of the equity shares bought back by the Company out of its free reserves
in the prior years

Securities premium account
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve will be utilised in accordance with
provisions of the Act

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

213  Provisions
Non-current

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 2.21) - -

Compensated absences 29 22
29 22
Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 2.21) 6
Compensated absences 8 7
14 7
As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

2.14 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterpliises and small enterprises - -

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 184 178
2.30)

184 178
Note:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends
that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006" ('the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2019 has been
made in the financial statement based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management,
the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the Balance sheet date.
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As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018

2.15  Other financial liabilities

Current
Accrued expenses(*) 365 283
Dues to employees 70 60
Capital creditors 59 -
Others 57 35

551 378

Other disclosures
(a) Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost; 551 378
(b) Financial liabilities carried at fair value through Profit or loss - -

(*) During the current year, the Company has created a provision of ¥ 82 lakhs based on the advice received from JSW Steel Limited,
due to increase in the water tariff from & 3,200 per mcft to ¥ 300,000 per mcft as per tariff schedule of Karnataka Government.

216  Other current liabilities

Statutory dues payable 990 889
990 889

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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217

2.18

219

2.20

2.21

Revenue from operations

Income from lease rent (refer note 2.26)
Income from operations and management services (refer note 2.26)

Other operating revenue:

Sale of products
Scrap sales

Other income

Interest income on:

Bank deposits

Loans (refer note 2.29)
From financial assets carried at amortised cost (refer note 2.29)

Net gain on sale of current investments
Fair value gain (loss):
Investments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Extinguishment of liabilities
Insurance claims(")
Other miscellaneous income

Year ended
31 March 2019

Year ended
31 March 2018

5,823 5,956
47,268 47,382
53,001 53,338
2,202 1,842
2 5
2,204 1,847
55,295 55185
333 743
2 114
20 15
669 225
71 108
) 44

99 -

6 7
1,200 1,254

(") During the current year, the Company has received an insuarance claim of ¥ 99 lakhs made in the previous year, which pertains to
repairs and maintenance expenses incurred during the previous year. Since the expenses are already incurred and charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the previous year, the insurance claim received during the year is accounted as other income,

Power and fuel

Power (refer note 2.29)
Utilities (refer note 2.29) (*)

47,268 45,790
886 698
48.154 46,488

(*) During the current year the Company has netted off the excess of utility charges paid over the value of utilities consumed by the
Company as per the per the revised Pipeline Supply Agreement (PSA dated 1 August 2016) amounting to ¥ 99 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥

54 lakhs).

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Stock at the end of the year

Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Less: Stock at the beginning of the year

Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus”

Contributions to provident and other funds [refer note (a)]
Gratuity [refer note (b}]

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses*

111 69
3 2
114 71
69 107
2 2
71 109
(43) 38
450 4086
21 18
13 6
11 15
52 53
547 498

("} Includes the stock compensation charges paid to the Holding Company amounting to ¥ 11 lakhs(31 March 2018: Nil) [refer note 2.25].

(*) Includes the prepaid expense on account of unwinding of the discount for the security deposit paid to the Holding Company which is

carried at amortised cost amounting to 25 lakhs (31 March 2018: T 24 lakhs ) [refer note 2.05].
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2.21

Employee benefits expense (cont'd)

2.21 (a) Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits under the Provident Fund which is a defined contribution plan wherein both the

2.21 (b)

employee and the Company make monthly contributions equal to a specific percentage of covered employees' salary. These contributions
are made to the Fund administered and managed by the Government of India and the Company has no further obligation beyond making
its contribution. The Company's monthly contributions are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Employer's contribution to Provident fund 21 18
Employer's contribution to Superannuation fund - -
21 18

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
(the Act). The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. Under the Act, an
employee who has completed five years of service is entitied to the specific benefit. Liability with regard to such gratuity is determined by
an independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit method and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year.
Actuarial gains and losses are credited/ charged to the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which such gains or
losses arise.

The following table set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 19 - Employee benefits,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Change in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year 49 42
Current service cost 4 4
Interest cost 4 3
Past Service Cost 9

Benefits settled (2) -
Actuarial gains (4) 0
Obligations at the end of the year 60 49
Gratuity

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value 52 11
Expected return on plan assets (estimated) 4 1
Actuarial gains / (losses) (0) Q)
Contributions 0 40
Benefits settled @) -
Plan assets at the end of the year, at fair value 54 52
Reconciliation of present value of obligation and the fair value of assets

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 60 49
Less: Fair value of plan assets 54 52
(Asset)/liability recognised in the balance sheet o] (31
Components of net gratuity cost

Current service cost 4 4
Past service cost 9

Net Interest cost (0) 2
Net gratuity costs charged to profit or ioss 13 6
Components Remeasurement losses/(gains) in other comprehensive income

Recognised net actuarial losses/(gains) (4) 0
Remeasurement losses in other comprehensive income (4) 0
Assumptions used

Discount rate 7.79% 7.83%
Salary escalation rate (*) 6.00% 6.00%
Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00%
Retirement age 58 & 60 years 60 years

(*) Estimates of future salary increases
takes into account inflation, seniority,
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2.21 Employee benefits expense (cont'd)
Experience adjustments
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

31 March 2017

31 March 2016 31 March 2015

Present value of defined benefit obligation 60 49
Plan asset 54 52
Funded status - surplus / (deficit) (6) 3
Experience adjustments on plan assets - -
(31 March 2016: ¥ 33,000)
Experience adjustment on plan

liabilities:(Gain) / Loss @ 2

42

1
&1

23

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions

31 March 2019

50 41
39 38

(11 (3
(0) 2
4 1

31 March 2018

1% increase
(a) Rate of discounting
Impact on defined benefit obligation 4)

(b) Salary increase/decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 5

(c) Employee turnover
Impact on defined benefit obligation 1

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on a method that

The following are expected payments from the fund in future years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years
Between 5 and 10 years
Total expected payments

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (refer note 2.01 (A))
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 2.01 (B))

2.23  Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares (refer note 2.01(A}) []
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 2.23 (a))
Donation
Directors' siting fees
Insurance
Loss on foreign currency transaction and translation, net
Professional fees (refer note 2.23 (b))
Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings
Plant and machinery
Others
Provision for slow and non-moving stock
Rates and taxes
Security charges
Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses

[*] includes write off obsolete inventory ¥ 5 lakhs (31 March 2018: Nil)

2.23 (a) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
Amount spent during the year
Shortfall/(excess) of corporate social responsibility expenditure
2.23 (b) Payment to auditors (*)

Statutory audit fees(including limited review fees)

Tax audit

Reimbursement of expenses
(*) excluding applicable taxes

X2

1% decrease

Q)]

0]

1% increase 1% decrease

©)] 4
4 ®)
= (©)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

31 March 2019

12 10
8 5
30 28
50 43
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2018

1,945 1,834
5 1
1,950 1,835
159 317
84 123
850 .
18 18
42 21
. 3
44 39
3 -
129 201
36 27
- 78
1 1
12 9
8 10
4 4
1.401 861
85 123
84 123
4 -
39 23
2 2
1 -
42 25
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2.24

2.24 (a)

2.24 (b)

2.24 (c)

2.24 (d)

2.24 (e)

Income taxes

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Current taxes 2,147 2,071
Deferred taxes (423) (415)
Income tax expense 1,724 1,656
Reconciliation of income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory tax rate:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Accounting profit before tax 4,486 4,924
Enacted tax rates in India 34.94% 34.61%
Computed expected tax expense 1,568 1,704
Effect due to non-deductible expenses 163 43
Interest on delayed payments of taxes, not allowed as an expenditure 4 8
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 1) (100)
Others - 1
Income tax expense 1,724 1,656

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Deferred tax liability:

Fixed assets 2,842 3,279

Total deferred income tax liabilities 2,842 3,279
Deferred tax assets:

Provisions for employee benefits 15 10

Provisions for slow and non-moving stock 91 110

Total deferred income tax assets 106 120

Deferred income tax liabilities, net 2,736 3.159
Note:

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset wherever the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and where the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

The gross movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Net deferred income tax liability at the beginning of the year 3,159 3,574
Tax income during the period recognised in profit or loss on temporary differences (455) (415)
Adjustment of deferred tax pertaining to earlier years 31

Tax income / (expense) during the period recognised in other comprehensive income on temporary

differences 1

Net deferred iIncome tax liability at the end of the year 2,736 3,159
Note:

The credit relating to temporary differences are primarily on account of property, plant and equipments, compensated absences and
certain deductions under the Income Tax Act, 1961 allowed only on payment basis

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Income tax assets (*)
Non-current
Considered good
Advance income tax, net of provision 17,599 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 15,421 lakhs) 431 431
431 431
The movement is on account of following:
Balance at the beginning of the year (net) 431 431
Balance at the end of the year (net) 431 431
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2.24 Income taxes {cont'd)
2.24 () Income tax liabilities (*)

Current

154 251
Provision for income tax, net of advance tax of ¥ 7,499 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 7,433 lakhs)

154 251

The movement is on account of following:
Balance at the beginning of the year (net) 251

292
Provision recognised for the year 2,189 2,071
Provision recognized / (reversed) on other comprehensive income - -
Adjustment of advance and provision for tax pertaining to earlier years (42) -
Less: Advance tax paid (including self-assessment tax and taxes deducted at source) (2,244) (2,112)
Balance at the end of the year (net) 154 251

(*) Income tax assets and liabilities have been offset wherever they belong to the same assessment year and not on cumulative basis,
and then the excess tax has been disclosed as an asset (excess payments) or liability (short payments) as the case may be. Further the

excess taxes paid may not be recoverable / realisable within one year from the balance sheet, hence the same has been presented under
non-current assets.

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.25 Share based payments

27

The Board of Directors of JSW Steel Limited at its meeting held on 29 January 2016, formulated the JSWSL Employee Stock Ownership Plan
2016 ('ESOP Plan 2016'). ESOP Plan 2016 is the primary arrangement under which the shared plan service incentive are provided to certain
specified employees of the companies and its subsidiaries in India. At the said meeting, the Board of Directors of JSW Steel Limited authorised
the ESOP Commmitee for superintendence of the ESOP Plan 2016.

Three grants would be made under ESOP Plan 2016 to eligible employees on the rolls of the company as at 01 April 2016, 01 April 2017, 01 April
2018.The maximum value and share options that can be awarded to eligible employees is calculated by reference to certain percentage of
individuals fixed salary compensation. 50% of the grant would vest at the end of the third year and 50% of the grant would vest at the end of the
fourth year with a vesting condition that the employee is in continuous employment with the Company till the date of vesting.

The exercise price would be determined by the ESOP committee as a certain discount to the primary market price on the date of grant. These
options are equity settled and are accounted for in accordance with requirement applying to equity settled share based transactions.

Option Series Options  Options  Grant date  Vesting period from grant date  Exercise Fair value  Method of
granted vested price at grant settlement
date
1st Grant 17 May 2016 1,360 680 17-May-16 17 May 2016 till 31 March 2019 (for  103.65 67.48 Equity
50% of the grant) and 17 May 2016
to 31 March 2020 (for remianing
50% of the grant)
2nd Grant 16 May 2017 - - 16-May-17 16 May 2017 till 31 March 2020 (for  161.36 104.04 Equity
50% of the grant) and 16 May 2017
to 31 March 2021 (for remianing
50% of the grant)
3rd Grant 15 May 2018 6,108 - 15-May-19 15 May 2018 lill 31 March 2021 (for  253.92 167.15 Equity
50% of the grant) and 15 May 2018
to 31 March 2022 (for remianing
50% of the grant)
Total stock compensation charges recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of employee benefit expense is as follows:
Year ended
31 March 2019
Stock compensation charges (refer note 2.21) 11
11

Fair-value methods and assumptions
The Company account for awards granted ESOP Plan 2016 at fair value.

i) The Company estimate the fair values for options using the Black-Scholes-option-pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

Grant 3 Grant 1

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2019

Weighted average grant date fair value, per share 167.15 674.79
Weighted average assumptions used:

Expected volatility 33.35% 39.43%

Expected lives (in years) 5.50 5.50

Risk-free interest rates 7.83% 7.40%

Expected dividend yields 2.25% 1%

Expected volatility
Calculation is based on historical stock prices. Volatility was calculated using standard deviation of daily change in stock price. The historical
period considered for volatility match the expected life of the option.
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2.25 Share based payments (Cont'd)

Expected lives of options

The expected option life is assumed to be mid way between the option vesting and expiry. Since the vesting period and contractual term of each
tranche is different, the expected life for each tranche will be different. The expected option life is calculated as (Year to Vesting + Contractual
Option Term)/2

Risk-free interest rates

Zero coupon sovereign bond yields were utilized with maturity equal to expected term of the option.

Summarized information about stock options outstanding, is as foliows:

As at
31 March 2019

Number Weighted average

of exercise price
options per share

Opening balance 1,360 103.65
Granted during the year 6,108 253.92
Exercised during the year 680 103.65
Forfeited during the year

Closing balance 6,788

Vested and exercisable 680

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2019 was
Grant 1 - ¥ 1295.60
Grant 3- ¥ 317.40
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2.26
2.26 (a)

2.27

2.27 (a)

Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as a lessor

(i) The Company has leased out land and other facilities under non-cancellable operating lease. Total rental income under such leases during
the year amounted to ¥ 3 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 3 lakhs). Future minimum lease rentals receivable expected under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Not later than 1 year 3 3
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 10 10
Later than 5 years 29 31

(if) The Company ('the seller') has entered into a Pipeline Supply Agreement ('PSA"), dated 1 August 2016 applicable retrospectively from 1 June
2015, with its JSW Steel Limited ('the buyer', 'holding Company") for supply of industrial gases to meet their requirements for oxygen, nitrogen
and argon, considering the maximum production and demand levels as mentioned in the PSA. The agreement has a lock-in period of 3 years
and would stay effective for a period of 10 years from 1 June 2015; with a deemed extension of 5 years if the seller incurs a capital expenditure
to the extent of ¥ 15,000 lakhs. The Buyer is also committed to a ‘'minimum-take-or-pay' arrangement as set forth in the PSA to the extent of
93.616 cubic nanometer (nm3) of gaseous oxygen and 20.580 cubic nanometer (nm3) of gaseous nitrogen.,

The Pipeline Supply Agreement ('PSA’) entered into by the Company further conveys a right to use of asset (mainly being plant and machinery
and building) to the buyer in return for a periodic payments along with clauses for minimum guaranteed intake quantities (i.e. is an embedded
lease). The management estimates that the term of the agreement does not cover the significant remaining useful life of the assets as on 1
August 20186, including right to extend for a period of 5 years only if the seller incurs additional capital expenditure. Further, the PSA does not
transfer ownership of the asset to the buyer at the end of the term. Accordingly, the Company has assessed the embedded lease arrangement
as an operating lease and has bifurcated the billing from the sale of gases and liquid oxygen, nitrogen and argon to the buyer in note 2.15
'Revenue from Operations' between 'Income from lease rentals' and 'Income from operation and management services'.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Not later than 1 year - 4,551
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - 1,517
Later than 5 years & -
- 6,068
Contingencies and commitments As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
(a) Excise duty matters 949 679 925 679
(b) Sales tax matters 480 292 480 292
(c) Entry tax matters 18 4 18 4
(d) Income tax matters 241 - 141 -
1,688 975 1,564 975

A. Central Excise

i. The Company has received tax demands to the extent of ¥ 248 and ¥ 623 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 248 and 623 lakhs) from the Central Excise
authorities pertaining to period from 1 October 1998 to 31 October 2004 and April 2000 to May 2001, respectively, on denial of cenvat credit on
capital goods, which is being contended before the High Court of Karnataka and Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, respectively. A deposit of ¥
679 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 679 lakhs) has been paid adainst demands.

ii. The Company has received demands to the extent of ¥ 14 and ¥ 40 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 14 and Z 40 lakhs) from the Central Excise
authorities pertaining to fiscal ended 31 March 2006 and to period from 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2007, respectively, on account of interest and
penalty on excise duty paid on income tax reimbursements being given to the Company by its existing holding company. The same is being
contended before the High Court of Karnataka and Appellate Tribunal, respectively,

iii. During the current year, the company has received demands to the extent of ¥ 24 lakhs from the Central Excise authorities pertaining to
period from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2015 on account of excise duty on rental income from infrastructural-facilities being provided by the
Company to its Customer, which was contended before Appellate Tribunal,
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2.27 (b)

B. Sale tax / VAT

i. The Company has received demands to the extent of ¥ 122 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 122 lakhs) from the Sales tax authorities pertaining to
fiscal ended 31 March 2000 and 31 March 2001. The demand is on account of exemption on Sales tax, to the extent of capital investment made
by the Company, per the Industrial Policy of Government of Karnataka, vide Notification. No. FD 231 CSSI, 2000(2), Bangalore, dtd. 27 January
2001. The department has contended that the Company is liable to pay sales tax on minimum-take-or-pay ('MTOP') revenue and hence
exemption was required to be claimed by the Company on such sales and hence the Company has claimed an excess exemption to the extent of
demand in subsequent years. The same is being contended before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India. A deposit of 127 lakhs (31 March
2018: ¥ 127 lakhs) has been paid to the authorities.

ii. The Company has received demands to the extent of ¥ 24 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 24 lakhs) from the Sales Tax authorities pertaining to
period ended 31 July 2005. The demand is on account of exemption on Sales Tax, to the extent of capital investment made by the Company, per
the Industrial Policy of Government of Karnataka, vide Notification. No. FD 231 CSSI, 2000(2), Bangalore, dated 27 January 2001. The
department has contended that the Company is liable to pay sales tax on minimum-take-or-pay (‘MTOP'") revenue and hence exemption was
required to be claimed by the Company on such sales and hence the Company has claimed an excess exemption to the extent of demand in
subsequent years. The same is being contended before the Tribunal,

iii. The Company has received sales tax demands to the extent of ¥ 2 lakhs (31 March 2018: Z 2 lakhs) from the authorities pertaining to fiscal
ended 31 March 2002 and 31 March 2003 on account of tax rate differences, which is being contended before the Tribunal.

iv. The Company has received demands to the extent of ¥ 330 lakhs (31 March 2018: % 330 lakhs) from the Sales Tax authorities pertaining to
fiscal ended 31 March 2006 on account of refunds paid to the Company. The Company had an exemption from Sales Tax, to the extent of capital
investments made, per the Industrial Policy of Government of Karnataka, vide Notification. No. FD 231 CSSI, 2000(2), Bangalore, dtd. 27
January 2001, The department has contended that the customer to whom sales were affected during the period of exemption was also exempted
from paying sales tax on its purchases, and hence the sales tax so collected by the Company and paid to the department, should be refunded to
the customer, instead of the Company. The same is being contended before the Tribunal. A deposit of ¥ 165 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 165 lakhs)
has been paid to the authorities.

v. The Company has received sales tax demands to the extent of ¥ 2 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 2 lakhs) from the authorities pertaining to fiscal
ended 31 March 2006 on account of non-submission of c-forms and disallowance of input tax credit on certain items. The same is being
contended before the Tribunal, A deposit of ¥ 31,064 (31 March 2018: Z 31,064) has been paid to the authorities.

C. Entry tax:
The Company has received entry tax demands to the extent of ¥ 9 and ¥ 9 lakhs (31 March 2018: € 9 and ¥ 9 lakhs) from the authorities

pertaining to period 1 Apirl 2001 to 31 March 2003 and fiscal year ending 31 March 2009, respectively, on account of entry tax on import of
certain consumable items from other states, which is being contended before the Tribunal and Assistant commissioner of commercial taxes,
respectively. The department is of the view that the goods so purchased are in nature of capital items, and hence entry tax is liable to be paid on
the same. A deposit of ¥ 4 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 4 lakhs) has been paid to the authorities.

D. Income tax:

The Company has received Income Tax demands to the extent of ¥ 241 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 141 lakhs) from the authorities pertaining to
fiscal ended 31 March 2011, 31 March 2012, 31 March 2013, 31 March 2014, 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 on account of disallowance of
additional depreciation under Section 32(1) of The Income Tax Act, 1961, which is being contended before the Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals). The order of Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) dated 28 February 2018 has been pronounced in the favour of the Company for
the fiscal ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2012, The department has filed an appeal against the order of Commissioner of Income Tax
(Appeals) before the "Income tax appelate tribunal”,

E. The Company is contesting the above mentioned demands and the management believes that its position will likely be upheld with respective
authorities. Accordingly, no tax expense has been accrued in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, for the indirect and
direct tax demands received. Considering the facts and nature of demands, the Company believes that the final outcome of the disputes should
be favorable and will not have any material adverse effect on the financial position and results of operations.

As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Commitments
Utility commitments - 1,024
Capital commitments 100 918

100 1,942

Earnings per share: Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders (in ¥ lakhs) 2,763 3,268
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year for computing basic EPS (*) 92,083,826 92,083,826

(*) There have been no transactions involving Equity shares or potential Equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation
of these financial statements.

Earnings / (loss) per share (in ¥) :

- Basic & diluted 3.00 3.55
Nominal value per share 10 10

>
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2.29 Related party disclosures

2.29 (a) Parties exercising control:

Holding Company JSW Steel Limited
2.29 (b) Other related parties with whom the Company had transactions:

Significant influence by KMP JSW Projects Limited
2.29 (¢) Key management personnel:

Managing and whole-time director of the Company Harish Kottarath Nair

Chief Financial Officer and Company secretary Satya Srinivas

2.29 (d) _Disclosure of transactions with the related parties:

Holding Company/
Name Ultimate holding Company/Other Key management personnel
Companies
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

JSW Steels Limited

Income from lease rent 5,823 5,956 - -
Income from operations and management services 47,268 47,382 -

Unwinding of discount on security deposits 20 15

Staff welfare expenses, including ESOP(refer note 2.21) 36 24

Purchase of power 47,268 45,790 - -
Purchase of utilities 886 698 - -
Purchase of material for capital work in progress 102 - - -
Reimbursement of expenses 8 -

JSW Projects Limited

Unsecured loans given - 20,000 - -
Unsecured loans recovered - (20,000) - -
Interest accrued on unsecured loan - 114 = -

Key management personnel:
Harish Kottarath Nair * - - 71 59
Satya Srinivas - - 58 55

(*) The above figures do not include provision for compensated absences, gratuity payable, as the same are actuarially determined for the
Company as a whole. The remuneration paid to Mr. Harish Kottarath Nair includes amount pertaining to JSW Steel Limited Employee Stock
Plan 2016.

2.29 (e) Disclosure of balances with related parties:

Holding Company/
Ultimate holding Company/Other Key management personnel
Companies
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars

Trade receivables

JSW Steel Limited 2,473 2,134 -
Investments made:

JSW Steel Limited 3 3 - -
Prepaid expenses

JSW Steel Limited 174 199 -
Security deposit

JSW Steel Limited 173 153 -
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2.29
U]

(if)

(ii)

Related party disclosures (cont'd)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received
for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2018: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates

Commitments with related parties

The Company ('the seller') has entered into a Pipeline Supply Agreement ('PSA'), dated 1 August 2016 applicable retrospectively from 1 June
2015, with its JSW Steel Limited ('the buyer', 'holding Company') for supply of industrial gases to meet their requirements for oxygen, nitrogen
and argon, considering the maximum production and demand levels as mentioned in the PSA, The agreement has a lock-in period of 3 years
and would stay effective for a period of 10 years from 1 June 2015; with a deemed extension of 5 years if the seller incurs a capital expenditure
to the extent of ¥ 15,000 lakhs.

Now, the buyer has agreed to supply the seller with certain utilities such as water, LPG etc. at a fixed monthly minimum price commitment of ¥
66 lakhs (31 March 2018: ¥ 66 lakhs). Accordingly, if the seller consumes more than the monthly minimum price committment, then the same
shall be paid based on actual consumbotion in resoective months

Dividend
During the current year, the Company has declared and paid final dividend at the rate of  13.5 (135%) per equity share for the financial year
ended 31 March 2018.

Segment information

Based on guiding principles in Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting," the primary business segment of the Company is "industrial gases/liquid”. As
the Company operates in a single primary business segment, disclosure requirements are not applicable. The Company caters to the domestic
market and accordingly there is no reportable geographical segment

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) and the Managing Director ("the MD") of the Company review the performance of the Company at the
enterprise level, The Board and the MD rely primarily on the results at the enterprise level for assessing performance and making decisions
about resource allocation and hence, management believes that there are no reportable segments.

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.31  Fair value measurements
2.31 (a) Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2019 were as follows:

Particulars Cost Financial Financial Total carrying Total fair value

assets/liabilities at assets/liabilities at value

FVTPL FVTOCI

Assets:
Investments (refer note 2.03) 7,052 177 2 7,231 7,231
Investment property (refer note 2.02) 4 - - 4 153
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 124 - - 124 124
2,08)
Other bank balances (refer note 2.09) 980 - - 980 980
Trade receivable (refer note 2.07) 2,546 = < 2,546 2,546
Loans (refer note 2.04) 4173 - - 4,173 4,173
Others financial assets (refer note 2.10) 16 - - 16 16
Total 14,895 177 2 15,074 15,223
Liabilities:
Trade payable (refer note 2.14) 184 - - 184 184
Other financial liabilities (refer note 2.15) 551 - - 551 551
Total 735 - - 735 735

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2018 were as follows:

Particulars Cost Financial Financial Total carrying Total fair value

assets/liabilities at assets/liabilities at value

FVTPL FVTOCI

Assets:
Investments (refer note 2.03) 20,782 106 2 20,890 20,890
Investment property (refer note 2,02) 4 - - 4 153
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 1,060 - - 1,060 1,060
2.08)
Other bank balances (refer note 2.09) 2,362 - - 2,362 2,362
Trade receivable (refer note 2.07) 2,203 - - 2,203 2,203
Loans (refer note 2,04) 153 - - 153 153
Others financial assets (refer note 2,10) 72 . - 72 72
Total 26,636 106 2 26,744 26,893
Liabilities:
Trade payable (refer note 2.14) 178 - - 178 178
Other financial liabilities (refer note 2.15) 378 - - 378 378
Total 556 - - 556 556
Note:

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables and other
financial liabilities approximate the carrying amount largely due to short-term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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2.31 Fair value measurements (cont'd)

2.31(b) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value
hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

a) Assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
The management assessed that for amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value

As at 31 March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 2,08) - - 124 124
Other bank balances (refer note 2.09) - - 980 980
Trade receivable (refer note 2.07) - - 2,546 2,546
Loans (refer note 2.04) - - 4,173 4,173
Investment property (refer note 2.02) * - - 4 153
- - 7,827 7,976
As at 31 March 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 2.08) - - 1,080 1,060
Other bank balances (refer note 2.09) - - 2,362 2,362
Trade receivable (refer note 2.07) - - 2,203 2,203
Loans (refer note 2.04) - - 153 153
Investment property (refer note 2.02) * - - 4 153
- - 5,782 5,931

* Investment property is carried at cost and the fair value is disclosed (refer note 2.02)

b) Assets and liabilities measured at fair values:
The management assessed that for amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

As at 31 March 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments (refer note 2.03) 7,231 - - 7,231
7,231 - - 7,231
As at 31 March 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments (refer note 2.03) 20,890 - - 20,890
20,890 - - 20,890

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.32

2.32 (a)

2.32 (b)

Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed
to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines
equivalent, other bank
balances, trade
receivables, financial

assets measured at
amortised cost.

Liquidity risk Cash and cash Ageing analysis Bank deposits, diversification of asset base and
equivalent, other bank credit limits
balances, trade
receivables, financial

assets measured at

amortised cost and other

financial liabilities.
Market risk — Security Investment in  equity Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversifications
prices instruments, investments

in mutual funds

The Company's risk management is carried out by a central freasury department (of the group) under policies approved by the board of
directors, The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults,

Trade receivable

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
The allowance account in respect of trade and other receivables is used to record impairment losses unless the Company is satisfied that no
recovery of the amount owing is possible. At that point, the financial asset is considered irrecoverable and the amount charged to the allowance
account is written off against the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset,

As the Company does not hold any collateral, the maximum expense to credit risk for each class of financial instrument is the carrying amount
of that class of financial instrument presented on the statement of financial position.

Financial instruments and cash balances

The Company manages its exposures in cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, investments in equity securities and mutual funds.
The credit risk is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are
made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

Credit risk exposure

The Company is exposed to a concentration of credit risk with respect to its trade receivable balances from its Holding Company. At the
reporting date, trade receivable balances from Holding Company represents 97 percent (31 March 2018: 97 percent) of the total trade
receivable balances, respectively,

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of any impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the year end is as follows:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Loans (refer note 2.04) 4,173 153
Trade receivable (refer note 2,07) 2,546 2,203
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 2.08) 124 1,060
Other bank balances (refer note 2.09) 980 2,362
Other assets (refer note 2.05) 1,267 1,256
Total 9.090 7.034
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments,
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

Maturities of financial assets and liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all current
financial liabilities, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is insignificant
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2.32
2.32 (b)

2.32 (c)

Financial risk management (cont'd)

Liquidity risk (cont'd)

As at 31 March 2019 Carrying Less than 1 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
amount year
Trade payables (refer note 2.14) 184 184 - - 184
Other financial liabilities (refer note 551 551 - - - 551
2.15)
Total 735 735 - - - 735
As at 31 March 2018 Carrying Less than 1 1-2 years 2-4 years 4-7 years Total
amount year
Trade payables (refer note 2.14) 178 178 - - - 178
Other financial liabilities (refer note 378 378 - - -
378
2.15)
Total 556 556 - - - 556
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of potential adverse change in the Company's income and the value of Company net worth arising from movement in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates or other market prices. The Company recognises that the effective management of market risk is
essential to the maintenance of stable earnings and preservation of shareholder value. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency
risk arises when transactions are denominated in foreign currencies.

The Company operates locally in INR and but is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions (imports of
materials), primarily with respect to the US Dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency. The Company does not hedge its foreign exchange payables.

Foreign currency risk exposure: As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Trade payables (US$ 7,377 (31 March 2018: US$ 284) - -

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments,
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
USS$ sensitivity
INR/US$- increase by 10% (0.51) -0.02% (0.02) 0.00%
INR/US$- decrease by 10% 0.51 0.02% 0.02 0.00%

Price risk

The Company's exposure price risk arises from investments held and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through other
comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss. The Company holds investments in mutual funds and nominal number of equity
shares of the Holding Company. To manage the price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of
assets.
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2.32 Financial risk management (cont'd)
2.32 (c) Market risk (cont'd)

Price risk exposure

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Investments in equity instruments carried at FVTOCI (refer note 2.03) 3 3
Investments in mutual funds carried at FVTPL (refer note 2.03) 7,228 20,887
7,231 20,890

Sensitivity analysis:
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Price increase by (50%) - FVTOCI 2 0.05% 2 0.05%
Price decrease by (50%) - FVTOCI (2) -0.05% (2) -0.05%
Price increase by (5%) - FVTPL 361 13.07% 1,044 31.95%
Price decrease by (5%) - FVTPL (361) -13.07% (1,044) -31.95%
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2.32 Value of stores and spares consumed

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Percentage Value Percentage Value
Stores and spares
- Imported 10% 16 5% 16
- Indigenous 90% 143 95% 301
100% 159 100% 317

* The value of stores and spare parts consumed has been arrived at on the basis of opening stock plus purchases less closing stock. Consumption
therefore includes adjustment for shortage/ excess, etc.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

2.33 Value of imports on CIF basis

Stores and spares 15 37
Capital goods 1 -
16 37
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

2.34 Expenditure in foreign currency

Repairs and maintenance - plant and machinery - 78
- 78

2.35 Ind AS 115 ~ Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Ind AS 115 ~ Revenue from Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2018, replaces the requirements of

existing revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18. The Company has applied the modified retrospective approach to all open contracts as at April 01, 2018.
The application of Ind AS 115 has no material impact on financial statements of the current year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank.)
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2.36 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the shareholder.

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity, comprising share capital and retained earnings.

The Company's management reviews the capital structure regularly. The Company balances its overall capital structure through issue of new
share issues. The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior financial year. The Company is not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements

2.37 Comparatives

Figures for the previous year have been regroupedireclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification /
disclosure.

This is the summary of accounting policies and other explanatory information referred to in our report of even date.
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